Digital Storage Oscilloscope

GDS-1000-U, GDS-1000A-U, GDS-3000 Series

Freewave Installation & User Guide



ISO-9001 CERTIFIED MANUFACTURER



This manual contains proprietary information, which is protected by copyright. All rights are reserved. No part of this manual may be photocopied, reproduced or translated to another language without prior written consent of Good Will company.

The information in this manual was correct at the time of printing. However, Good Will continues to improve products and reserves the rights to change specification, equipment, and maintenance procedures at any time without notice.

Freewave is free for single non-commercial use. Commercial use of the software is strictly prohibited without authorization from Good Will company.

Use the software at your own risk. Good Will accepts no liability for any damages, either as a direct or indirect consequence of the use of this product. Good Will Instrument Co., Ltd. No. 7-1, Jhongsing Rd., Tucheng Dist., New Taipei City 236, Taiwan

Table of Contents

Getting started	5
Overview	6
Types of Operations	
Monitoring the Oscilloscope Display	
Standard Memory Length Data Capture	8
Remote Controlling the Oscilloscope	11
Long Memory Length Data Capture	11
Installing Freewave	13
Required Equipment	13
Install Microsoft .Net (full version 4.0 or later) and \	/isual
C++ 2010 Redistributable Package (x64)	14
Installation Steps	15
Installing the Software Package	15
Connecting the Oscilloscope and Verifying Conne Manually Installing the USB Driver	ectivity 19
Depairing /Uninstalling Freework	21 25
Repairing/Onlinstaning Freewave	
Monitoring the Oscilloscope	26
Viewing the Oscilloscope Display Contents	27
Viewing the Oscilloscope Virtual Panel	29
Taking a Snapshot of Display Contents	
Taking a Video Clip of the Display Contents (GDS-10	00-U
and GDS-1000A-U only)	
Printing Out Display Contents	
Short Memory Data Capture	34
Viewing Oscilloscope Waveforms	
Saving Waveform Data	
Recalling Waveform Data	40
Using the Commands	41

G≝INSTEK

Preparing a Command List	41
Configuring and Running the Commands	44
Saving a Command List and its Result	46

Long Memory Data Capture (GDS-1000A-U Only)

Viewing Long Memory Oscilloscope Waveforms	47
Saving Waveform Data	50
Recalling Waveform Data	51

GETTING STARTED

Freewave supports the GDS-1000-U, GDS-1000A-U and GDS-3000 series oscilloscopes and is freely available to all customers.

Freewave can transfer full screen images, video, or waveform data from an oscilloscope to a PC via a USB connection. The software display is updated in real-time from the host oscilloscope. Images and movie clips can also be saved onto the PC. Images can be printed directly to a printer.

For data analysis, Freewave is able to capture raw waveform data from the oscilloscope and display it on the PC screen. Waveforms can be saved in CSV format to be reused in other applications. Freewave can also record long memory or standard memory length waveforms with the GDS-1000A-U series.



Overview

Applicable	• GDS-1000-U
oscilloscope	• GDS-1000A-U
	• GDS-3000
Applicable OS	• Windows XP (32 bit)
	• Windows Vista (32 bit)
	• Windows 7 (32 bit, 64 bit)
Main features	 Updates the oscilloscope display in real-time, allowing remote observation.
	Virtual Panel operation
	Records oscilloscope images.
	 Records video clips to a PC (GDS-1000-U and GDS-1000A-U only)
	 Captures digital waveform data in CSV format. CSV is viewable and editable in most spreadsheet applications. (standard and long record lengths)
	 Automatically loads remote commands, supports command lists, running commands and saving results to a PC.
	• Supports fast USB 2.0 connections and captures the oscilloscope display in almost real-time.
	 Automatically recognizes the oscilloscope hardware and configures the channel number and remote control commands accordingly.
	• Prints out snapshots of the oscilloscope display. Inverting the background color is also available.

Types of Operations

Four types of operations are available in Freewave: Standard memory length display monitoring, data capturing, and remote controlling, long memory length data capturing.

Monitoring the Oscilloscope Display

The oscilloscope display contents appear in the Freewave screen in real-time. You may store a snapshot image or video clip into the PC, and invert the background color for better viewing. Snapshot images can also be printed out. The oscilloscope monitor can be switched between the Freewave screen and a simulated oscilloscope display.



When using the simulated display, all oscilloscope functions and controls are available on a virtual oscilloscope panel.

G^W**INSTEK**



Standard Memory Length Data Capture

Standard memory length data can be directly transferred to the Freewave screen. Up to 10 waveforms can be captured at any one time for analysis. All waveforms can be zoomed and panned as well as positioned vertically.

G^W**INSTEK**



Waveform data as well as the oscilloscope identification can be stored as a Comma Separated Values (*.csv) file which can be opened and edited by a spreadsheet application such as Microsoft Excel.

□ □ □ - (□ -) =				
U	常月	月 插入	版面配置	公式
	×	新細明體	- 1	2 - A /
L 98	- 🛷	BIU	• 🖽 • 🗠	<u>•</u> <u>А</u> • фž
剪貼	簿 🤉		字型	
		A1	, (fs
		А	В	С
1	Memo:	ry Length	25000	
2	Trigge	r Level	1.24V	
3	Source (CH1	
4	Probe		1.00E+01	
5	Vertica	al Units	V	
6	Vertica	al Scale	1.00E+00	
7	Vertica	al Position	1.08E+00	
8	Horizo	ntal Units	S	
9	Horizo	ntal Scale	5.00E-04	
10	Horizo	ntal Position	0.00E+00	
11	Sampli	ng Period	2.00E-07	
12	Firmware V1.1		V1.17	
13	Time		########	
14	Mode		Fast	
15	Wavef	orm Data		
16		36		
17		2		

Remote Controlling the Oscilloscope

Freewave automatically categorizes and lists the remote control commands. To run the commands, users only have to pick and place them on the list; no manual typing is required. The result can be stored in CSV format.



Long Memory Length Data Capture

Freewave can take advantage of the long memory length of the GDS-1000A-U series oscilloscopes. Waveform data can be arbitrarily zoomed and panned with ease. Cursors can be placed on the screen to accurately view measurements. Like the standard memory length data capture, long memory data can be saved as a *.csv file to be recalled at any time.

G≝INSTEK

🛄 Free Wave 3.12				
	-uu-	-ní II		
0.2 2 -				
0.15 - 1.5 -				
0.05- 0.5-				
0-0-				
-0.050.5 -				
-0.151.5 -				
-0.22 -	-0.006 -0.004	-0.002 0	0.002 0.004	0.006 0.008 0.01
✓ CH1 ✓ CH2			0	Q
				2012/2/15 下午 03:18:50
				510

NSTALLING FREEWAVE

The installation process includes preparing the necessary equipment, installing the software package to the PC, and confirming the connectivity.

Required Equipment

The following list shows the necessary hardware and software for installing and running Freewave.

ltem	Requirements
Oscilloscope	• GDS-1000-U
	• GDS-1000A-U
	• GDS-3000
PC	For 32 bit OS
	• Windows XP, Windows Vista, Windows 7
	Microsoft .Net Framework version 2.0 or later
	For 64 bit OS
	• Windows 7
	Microsoft. Net Framework full version 4.0 or later
	 Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 Redistributable Package
Freewave package	• Version 3.12 or above.
USB driver	• Version 1.03 or above
USB cable	• USB 2.0, type A (PC) – type B (oscilloscope)

Install Required Software

- Microsoft .Net (version 2.0 or later) is required to use some of the Freewave functions for PCs with a 32 bit OS
- Microsoft .Net (full version 4.0 or later) and Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 Redistributable Package (x64) are required to use some of the Freewave functions for PCs with a 64 bit OS
- Microsoft .Net and Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 Redistributable Package (x64) can both be downloaded for free from the Microsoft website.
- 1. Click on the *Control panel>Add or remove program* option. The list of installed programs will appear. Check if Microsoft .NET is installed.

🐻 新增或移	释君式			
5	目前安装的程式	🔲 顯示更新(D)	排序方式 ③:大小	*
要更或 移除	Microsoft Office XP Professional		大小 376	.00MB 🔼
程式(田)	Adobe Reader 9.2 - Chinese Traditional		大小 257	.00MB
	💕 Microsoft Office IME 2010 (Traditional Chinese)		大小 218	.00MB
100 新燈	🛃 Microsoft .NET Framework 3.0 Service Pack 2		大小 206	.00MB
程式图	💽 Dr.eye 9.0 Popular Edition		大小 206	.00MB
1	Hicrosoft .NET Framework 2.0 Service Pack 2		大小 185	.00MB
10 H 10 R 0	1976 Microsoft .NET Framework 4 Client Profile		大小 182	.00MB
Windows	<u> 接這裡取得支援資訊。</u>			
JUIT	要變更或從電腦物除這個程式,請按 [變更/构除]。		變更	/移除
</th <th>27 Windows Live 程式集</th> <th></th> <th>大小 123</th> <th>.00MB</th>	27 Windows Live 程式集		大小 123	.00MB
設定程式	🔂 GLA-A_Beta		大小 121	.00MB
設値①	🔂 Oscilloscope 2.0.5.0		大小 109	.00MB
	B 2007 Office system 相容性套件		大小 64	.50MB
	1 K-Lite Mega Codec Pack 5.5.1		大小 63	41MB
	🛃 ZScope		大小 51	23MB
	Realtek High Definition Audio Driver		大小 47	58MB
	- X NTTT			×

2. If Microsoft .NET (full version 4.0 or later) is not appropriately installed, download and install the latest versions from the Microsoft website.

http://www.microsoft.com/download/en/details.aspx?displayl ang=en&id=17718

 If Microsoft Visual C++ 2010 Redistributable Package (x64) is not appropriately installed, download it from the Microsoft website. http://www.microsoft.com/download/en/details.aspx?id=1463 2

Installation Steps

Follow these steps to properly install Freewave:

- Download and install the software package. Two versions of the software package (32 bit and 64 bit) are provided. Please select the appropriate version to download.
- Connect the oscilloscope to the PC.
- Verify the connection and operation.

Installing the Software Package

- 1. Unzip the software package into an installation directory.
- 2. Activate setup.exe. if a dialog box appears for the Microsoft .Net (full version 4.0 or later) framework.



3. When a dialog box appears for installing FreeWave, click the Next button to proceed.



- 4. Select the directory in which Freewave is to be installed. Click Next.
- To change the directory, click on the Browse button and select another directory from the directory map.
- To calculate the occupied space, click on the Disk Cost button. A separate dialog box will appear, showing the disk space required for Freewave and the entire space in the drive.
- To control the software accessibility, check "Everyone" or "Just me".

G≝INSTEK

🔐 Free Wave3
Select Installation Folder
The installer will install Free₩ave3 to the following folder.
To install in this folder, click "Next". To install to a different folder, enter it below or click "Browse".
Eolder: C\Program Files\Free Wave 3\ Browse
<u>D</u> isk Cost
Install FreeWave3 for yourself, or for anyone who uses this computer:
◯ Just <u>m</u> e
Cancel < <u>B</u> ack <u>N</u> ext >

5. Click on the Next button again to start the installation.

R. HISS WIMSD	
Confirm Installation	
The installer is ready to install FreeWave3 on your computer. Click ''Next'' to start the installation.	
Cancel < <u>B</u> ack	<u>N</u> ext >

6. When the installation is completed, click on the Close button to complete the process.



Connecting the Oscilloscope and Verifying Connectivity

- 1. Power the oscilloscope up.
- 2. Select the USB interface by pressing the Utility key, followed by F5 (More). Then, press F4 (USB Port) repeatedly until Computer is selected.(GDS-1000A-U and GDS-1000-U only)



3. Connect the USB cable between the oscilloscope and PC.





GDS-1000-U, GDS-1000A-U USB GDS-3000 series USB slave port slave port

4. Activate Freewave. If the oscilloscope ID appears on the screen, Freewave is ready for operation.

- m-	-ni II		
GW,GD5-3354,EK220632,	/1 17	FreeWave 3.12 Model Name : Serial No. : EI Firmware version :	GDS-3354 (220632 V1.17
		R	2012/215 T F 02:35:37
	GW,GDS-3354,EK220632,V	GW,GD3-3354,EK220832,V1 17	Tree Wave 3.12 Model Name : Serial No. : EI Firmware version :

5. If the oscilloscope ID does not appear in the initial display, click on the Scan (binoculars) icon to manually search for the oscilloscope. If this still fails, follow the instructions in the next section, "Manually Installing the USB Driver".



G^WINSTEK

Manually Installing the USB Driver

1. Open the Control Panel in the PC and activate the System icon.

System



2. Select Device manager.

In Windows XP, select the Hardware tab and activate the Device Manager.



In Vista, select Device Manager from the side menu.



3. Locate the oscilloscope either in the "Port" node (correct) or in the "Other devices" corner (incorrect).



- If the oscilloscope is correctly recognized (Port node), repair the Freewave installation (page25).
- If the oscilloscope is incorrectly recognized (Other devices node), follow the next step.

Note The COM port for the DSO should be set between COM1 to COM20. If the COM port is greater than 20, it can't be detected by DSO.

4. Right-click on the oscilloscope name and select "Update Driver" from the context menu. The driver installation dialog box should appear.

(Other de	vices
	h GDS	Update Driver Software
	PCMCIA	Disable
÷	SD host	Uninstall
÷	Security	Scan for hardware changes
÷ 퉩	SM Drive	
÷	Sound, 🔨	Properties
÷.C+	Storage (controllers

5. Install the DSO driver from the Freewave install directory.

ХΡ

6. In the dialog box, select "No, not this time" (not connecting to Windows Update) and click on the Next button.

Hardware Update Wizar	1
	Welcome to the Hardware Update Wizard Undew will be acchild in creater and golded software by basing on your company. In the hardware installation (2), or on the Window Update Web site (with your permission). Read our interact policy
	Can Windows connect to Windows Update to search for softwar?
	Click Next to continue.

7. Next, select "Install from a list or specific location" and click on the Next button.

Hardware Update Wizard	
	This wized helps you initial software for: DSO If your hardware came with an installation CD or floppy disk, inset it now.
	What do you want the wizard to do? O Install the software automatically (Recommended) @ Install from a let or geocific location (Advanced) Click Next to continue.
	Cancel

Vista

In the "Update Driver software – GDSXXXX", select the "Browse" dialog.

1010	ao you want to search for anyer somwarer
•	Search automatically for updated driver software Windows will search your computer and the Internet for the latest driver software for your device.
•	Browse my computer for driver software Locate and instal driver software manually.

Click Browse and select the Freewave installation directory. Press Next.

Brow	e for driver software on your computer
Searc	for driver software in this location:
ROJ	CTS\GD51000A\PROGRAMMENG MANUAL\DSO_CDC_1000A
•	et me pick from a list of device drivers on my computer In list will show installed driver software compatible with the driver, and al driver software in
	ne same category as the device.

 Select the directory where Freewave is installed and click on the Next button. The USB driver "dso_vpo.inf" will be installed. Click Next.



9. Check the Device Manager again. The oscilloscope should now be recognized in the "Ports" node as DSO.

Repairing/Uninstalling Freewave

After installing Freewave, repairing or uninstalling Freewave is possible using the same setup.exe file used to install the program.

Repair	Repairs corrupted functions by reinstalling Freewave. Select this function if Freewave starts malfunctioning.
Remove	Uninstalls Freewave from the PC.

1. Acitvate the setup.exe. A dialog box will appear.

Free Waye3	
Welcome to the FreeWave3 Setup Wizard	
Select whether you want to repair or remove FreeWave3.	
○ Remove FreeWave3	
Cancel (Back	Einish

- 2. Select Repair or Remove and click on the Finish button. Repair or removal starts and finishes automatically.
- 3. When it is completed, click on the Close button to complete the procedure.

MONITORING THE

OSCILLOSCOPE

The oscilloscope display contents appear in the Freewave screen, allowing observing and recording the waveforms in analog form; for capturing digital waveform points, refer to page26 "Monitoring the Oscilloscope". Here are the available operations.

- Viewing the oscilloscope's display contents
- Taking a snapshot image of the display contents
- Recording a movie clip of the display contents
- Printing out the display contents

The Virtual panel is able to remotely control a connected DSO and display the DSO contents back onto the Virtual Panel display. All functions and operations that can normally be performed on the DSO panel can be performed on the Virtual Panel.

Note

Viewing the Oscilloscope Display Contents

- 1. Connect the oscilloscope to the PC and activate Freewave. For details, see page19.
- 2. Select the Image tab (second from the left).
- 3. Click on the Play button in the control panel. The oscilloscope's display contents will appear on-screen.

The GDS-1000-U/1000A-U will continually send a screen shot to the PC, while the GDS-3000 will only send an initial screen shot once when the PLAY button is clicked.







Note	The pause button only applies to the G U/1000A-U	DS-1000-
Viewing in full- screen mode	To view the display in full-screen mode, click on the Full-screen button in the control panel.	Ħ
	Note: to go back to the original screen size, press the Space key, or double click anywhere on the screen.	
Closing Freewave	To close Freewave, do one of the following:	
	• Click on the Close button in the control panel	
	• Press the Alt + F4 keys	
	• Click on the Close icon at the top right corner of the screen.	

Viewing the Oscilloscope Virtual Panel

- 1. Make sure that the oscilloscope's display contents appear in the Freewave screen. See "Viewing the Oscilloscope Display Contents", page 27.
- 2. Click the View button to toggle the display.





	Use the mouse scroll wheel to scroll (the virtual variable knob.	
Note	To operate a variable knob without a scroll wheel, click on the left or right of the variable knob to scroll anticlockwise or clockwise, respectively.	\$
Return to the Freewave screen	To return to the Freewave screen view, press the View button again.	····

Taking a Snapshot of Display Contents

- 1. Make sure that the oscilloscope's display contents appear in the Freewave screen (both Play and Pause mode works fine).
- 2. Click on the Save button. A file save dialog box will appear.

Π	
L	

3. Select the file type and location and save the snapshot image.

File type	GIF (*.gif)	JPEG (*.jpg)
	Bitmap (*.bmp)	TIFF (*.tif)
	PNG (*.png)	

Taking a Video Clip of the Display Contents (GDS-1000-U and GDS-1000A-U only)

- 1. Make sure the oscilloscope's display contents appear in the Freewave screen, updated in real-time (Play mode).
- 2. Select the recording area by selecting either "Freewave Screen" or "Oscilloscope Display" in the Video Recording Area panel.



 Click on the Record button. Freewave automatically starts recording the display contents.



4. To stop the recording, click on the Stop button which will open a file save dialog box. Enter the file name, select the directory, and save the video in the *.wmv format.



G≝INSTEK

Printing Out Display Contents

- 1. Make sure the oscilloscope's display contents appear in the Freewave screen (both Play and Pause mode works fine).
- 2. Click on the Print button. A standard Windows printout dialog box will appear.



3. Configure the printer and printout the oscilloscope display contents.

SHORT MEMORY DATA

CAPTURE

The Data Capture function in Freewave directly transfers standard memory length waveform data (4k points) from the oscilloscope to the PC. Captured digital waveform data is stored in CSV format. CSV is compatible with most spreadsheet applications. The Data Capture function is used to:

- View oscilloscope waveforms
- Save waveform data

Viewing Oscilloscope Waveforms

- 1. Activate Freewave and connect the oscilloscope to the PC. For details, see page19.
- 2. Select the Data tab (second from the right).
- 3. Select the channel(s) from the Source panel on the left side of the Freewave screen.



4. Click on the Play button in the control panel. Freewave captures the waveform data for a single period and shows them in the screen.







The on-screen waveform data points will be shown under the oscilloscope display. Likewise the Time/Division rate will also be updated.



Waveform Data points

Zoomed (1,250 memory points) Default (4,000 memory points)

Vertically moving a waveform

Click on the waveform ID and then (No.2 selected) grab the short bar on the left side of **v** the display. Move the bar up or down to change the waveform 2 position vertically.

1 2

No.2 waveform moving down

No.2 waveform moving up



Horizontally moving a waveform

(This operation is available only when the waveform is zoomed in.) Click on the Left or Right icon to move the waveform horizontally.



The waveform position will be shown under the vertical position bar.



Deleting the waveform data

To delete a waveform data, click on (No.2 selected) the waveform ID and then click on the Delete icon. \square



Saving Waveform Data

- 1. Make sure that the waveform appears in the Freewave screen.
- 2. Click on the Save button. A file save dialog box will appear.
- 3. Select the file type and location and save the data. CSV data files store the waveform data points as well as the oscilloscope identification. Image data files store a snapshot of the waveform.

Data file format • CSV (*.csv)

Data file contents • Manufacturer

- Serial number
- Firmware

Model name

Waveform Data

Image file format • GIF (*.gif)

- Bitmap (*.bmp)
- PNG (*.png)
- When saving CSV data files, you will get the option to save as "Fast" or "Detail" waveforms. Detail waveforms save the amplitude and the time of each point relative to the trigger point. Fast waveforms only store the amplitude data.
- 4. Choose Fast or Detailed and click OK.

CSY File For	mat 🔀
• Fast	• Detail
	OK



- JPEG (*.jpg)
- TIFF (*.tif)
- Saved Date

GWINSTEK

Recalling Waveform Data

- 1. Click on the Recall button.
- 2. Select a file to recall from the file panel. Make sure that the file is a short memory length file.

Data file format • CSV (*.csv)

Data file contents • Manufacturer

- Serial number
- Saved Date

Both Fast and Detail file formats can be recalled.

le nr.

Freewave Manual

l

Model name

Waveform Data

• Firmware

USING THE COMMANDS

The command function in Freewave allows the oscilloscope to be controlled remotely without using a separate terminal application. Commands are categorized and labeled along with their descriptions. Data format and command order can be semiautomatically configured. Command results are shown in the screen and can be saved to a CSV file. Here are the available operations:

- Preparing a command list
- Configuring and running commands
- Saving a command list and its result

Preparing a Command List

- 1. Activate Freewave and connect the oscilloscope to the PC. For details, see page19.
- 2. Select the leftmost Command tab.



3.	Click on the "DSO Command" node on the left	⊕ DSO Command
	side. A detailed command list appears.	

Command list	The Command description area contains three
	types of information:

- Command: shows the command name in short mode
- Description: describes what the command does
- Data: shows the command's data format

For more details, see the GDS-1000-U, GDS-1000A-U and GDS-3000 Programming Manual.

G≝INSTEK



Changing the Click on a command in the command list and then click on the up or down arrow. The command changes its position in the list.

Moving a command (MEAS:SOUR) up



Moving a command (MEAS:SOUR) down



G≝INSTEK

Configuring and Running the Commands

- 1. Prepare the command list according to the previous section.
- 2. Configure the parameters of the commands.
- To change from "Set" to "Query", simply double-click on the "Set/Query" row.



• To change from "Query" to "Set", double-click on the "Set/Query" row and then enter the setting value in the dialog box. The parameter mode changes to "Set" with a new value.

	FreeWave		
	Set Value		
Set/Query	11	Value	Set/Query
Query \rightarrow	11	\rightarrow 1	Set

• To change the setting value, first change the mode from "Set" to "Query" by double-clicking on the row, then reset the value.



3. Click on the Play button. The commands run automatically in sequence and the returned values will be displayed in the "Value" row.



Command	Value	Set/Query
:AUT		Set
:MEAS:FREQ		Query
:MEAS:SOUR		Query _

Command	Value	Set/Query
:AUT		Set
:MEAS:FREQ	0.000E+00	Query
:MEAS:SOUR	1	Query

Note

• For more details regarding each command, see the programming manuals.

• Commands relating to screen or waveform capture may not be available in Freewave.

Saving a Command List and its Result

- 1. Prepare a command list and/or run the commands.
- 2. To save the command list and its result, click on the Save button. The save file dialog box opens.



3. Select the file directory, enter the file name and save the list in CSV (*.csv) format.

Opening the file A command list in CSV format can be opened using a spreadsheet application such as Microsoft Excel.

[A	В	С	D	E	F	G
	1	:MEAS:SOUR	1	Query	Select the	measured s	source char	nnel.
l	2	:MEAS:VMAX	-8.00E-04	Query	Return the	value of m	aximum amj	olitude.
	3	:DISP:ACC	Close	Query	Select the	accumulate	e display mo	de.

File contents

- Command name
- Command result
- Mode (set or query)
- Command description

LONG MEMORY DATA

CAPTURE (GDS-1000A-U ONLY)

The Long Memory Data Capture function in Freewave directly transfers long memory digital waveform data (up to 2M) from the oscilloscope to the PC. Captured digital waveform data is stored in CSV format. CSV is compatible with most spreadsheet applications. The Data Capture function is used to:

- View oscilloscope waveforms
- Save waveform data

GÜINSTEK

Viewing Long Memory Oscilloscope Waveforms

- 1. Activate Freewave and connect the oscilloscope to the PC. For details, see page19.
- 2. Select the Long Memory Data tab (last tab).
- 3. Choose the input channel(s).
- 4. Press the play icon at the bottom of the screen.
- 5. Freewave will start capturing data as soon as a waveform is triggered. A dialog box will ask to input a signal to CH1/CH2.



Г СНТ	
CH2	





6. Wait while the data is transferred to the PC. This is shown by a progress bar for each channel.



Create the area to be magnified by holding the left mouse button and dragging the cursor over the area to be magnified.

	E Free Ways 3.12				
	02 2- 015 15- 01- 1- 005 05- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0- 0				
	The waveform will be magnified to the size of the magnification area.				
Horizontally moving a waveform	Click on the Pan key. To pan the screen, hold the left mouse button anywhere on the waveform screen and drag the waveform left or right.				
	The horizontal scale will change accordingly.				
_	02 4 000155 0.0015 0.0015 0.00151 0.001515				
Cursors	To position cursors on the waveforms, press the Cursor key.				
	To move a cursor, left click and drag either the cursor line or cursor point to the desired positions.				

	E Free Wave 3.12				
	2	·····	-n II		
	02 2 2 015 15 - 015 15 - 016 1 - 005 05 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0		-0.0x2 0		
Reset Waveform	Pressing t waveform well as ren	he Reset k position move the	ey will re and scale cursors.	set the as	0
Clear waveforms	To clear th screen, pro	ne wavefo ess the De	rms on th lete key.	e	Ī

Saving Waveform Data

- 1. Make sure that there is a waveform in the Freewave screen.
- 2. Click on the Save button. A file save dialog box will appear.



3. Select a file name and location and save the data. The CSV data file stores the waveform data points as well as the oscilloscope identification. A *.csv file will be saved for each active channel. Each file will be appended with the channel number. For example: test →test1.csv, test2.csv

Data file format • CSV (*.csv)

GWINSTEK Long Memory Data Capture (GDS-1000A-U Only)

Data file contents • Manufacturer

- Serial number
- Saved Date
- When saving files, you will get the option to save "Fast" or "Detail" waveform data. Fast data only contains amplitude data. Detail data also contains the time of each point relative to the trigger point.
- 4. Choose Fast or Detailed and click OK. The file will be saved.

Recalling Waveform Data

- 1. Click on the Recall button.
- 2. Select a file to recall from the file panel. A file can be only be loaded to the channel it was originally saved to.

Data file format • CSV (*.csv)

Data file contents • Manufacture

- Serial number
- Saved Date
- Waveform Data

Firmware

Model name

Both Fast and Detail file formats can be recalled. Standard memory and long memory files can also be recalled.



• Fast	• Detail
	OK

😁 CSY File Format

Model name

Waveform Data

Firmware